
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 

South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ 
www.southlakeland.gov.uk  
 
 
 

You are requested to attend a meeting of  

the Licensing Sub-Committee 

on Thursday, 4 November 2021, at 10.00 a.m. 

in the Lowther Room, Kendal Town Hall 

 

Committee Membership 
Councillors 

 
Hazel Hodgson 

David Webster 

Ian Wharton 

 

Kevin Holmes (Substitute) 

 

 
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and 
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted 
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”. 
 
Note – Due to the ongoing Covid-19 Pandemic, any Members of the public who wish to 
observe the meeting, are required to contact committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk , at 
least 24 hours before the meeting. 
 
Wednesday, 27 October 2021 
 
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) 
 
For all enquiries, please contact:-  

Committee Administrator: Committee Services 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 
For all Licensing enquiries, please contact:-  

Licensing Officer:  Patrick Cantley 

Telephone: 01539 733333 

e-mail: licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk  

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/
mailto:committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk


AGENDA 
 

 Page Nos. 

PART I   

1  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN   

 To elect a Chairman for the meeting.  

2  APOLOGIES AND RECONSTITUTION OF MEMBERSHIP   

 To receive apologies for absence, if any, and to report any arising changes to 
membership. 

 

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda.  
 
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.) 
 
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests. 
 
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 

 

4  LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS   

 To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be 
considered in the presence of the press and public. 

 

5  INTRODUCTIONS   

 The Chairman will make introductions and read out the procedure for the 
meeting. 

 

6  LICENSING ACT 2003  3 - 50 

 To consider an application for a premises licence in respect of Lakeland Farm 
Visitors Centre, Ings. 

 

PART II   

 Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph 
number) 

There are no items in this part of the agenda. 

 



South Lakeland District Council 

Licensing Sub-Committee 

Thursday, 4 November 2021 

Licensing Act 2003 – Application for the variation of a 
premises licence  

Lakeland Farm Visitors Centre 

 

Portfolio:   Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder 

Report from:  Director of Customer and Commercial Services 

Report Author: Patrick Cantley – Specialist, Licensing 

Wards:  Kendal Rural; 

Forward Plan: Not Applicable 

 

Links to Council Plan Priorities: Working together to make South Lakeland the best place 
to live, work and explore.  

 

1.0 Expected Outcome and Measures of Success 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to enable members to determine whether or not to grant 
the variation to a premises licence in respect of Lakeland Farm Visitors Centre, Ings, 
having taken in to account relevant representations submitted by interested parties. 

2.0 Recommendation 

2.1 Members are requested to consider the representations that have been made, 
and determine whether or not to grant the variation to the premises licence, with 
or without conditions. 

2.2 Subsection 1.17 of guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 
states” each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with 
the licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application 
falls within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences 
and certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of 
the premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of 
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no 
need for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may 
be unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives in an individual case”. 

3.0 Background and Proposals 

3.1 On 2nd September 2021 Kerrie Benson submitted an application under the Licensing 
 Act 2003 to vary the existing premises licence for Lakeland Farm Visitors Centre, 
 Ings. The premises concerned is situated on the edge of the small village of Ings (a 
 map overview of the premises is available at Appendix C).  The application (Appendix 
 A) seeks authorisation for the following – Supply of alcohol (on and off the 

Page 3

Item No.6



 premises) Monday to Saturday from 10.00 hours to 23.00 hours and on Sunday from 
 10:00 hours to 22:00 hours. **For awareness, Section E Live Music and Section F
 Recorded Music were also completed with the submission. However, timings sought 
 are within deregulated hours so neither activity should be included within the decision 
 making process today. Members may wish to consider the proposed variation against 
 the existing premises licence. A copy of the licence is contained at Appendix D of this 
 document.   
 

4.0 Appendices Attached to this Report 

Appendix No. Name of Appendix 

A Completed Application  

B Relevant representations from interested parties  

C Map overview of premises location 

D Existing premises licence  

5.0 Consultation 

5.1 A copy of the application has been served on all responsible authorities. 
None of the responsible authorities have submitted a relevant representation. 

 
5.2  The applicant advertised the application in a local newspaper within the first 10 working 

days of consultation as required by legislation. The applicants also displayed a ‘blue 
notice’ at the premises from the first day of the consultation period. 

 
5.3  The representations to consider in respect of this application have been brought to the 

attention of the applicant. They concern the possible effect of granting the licence 
would undermine the licensing objectives of ‘Prevention of crime and disorder’ and 
‘Prevention of public nuisance’. Copies of the representations can be found at 
Appendix ‘B’ of this report.  

5.4 Members may also wish to refer to the legal information within this report. 

6.0 Alternative Options 

6.1 The Licensing Sub-Committee may 
 

 Grant the application as requested 

 Modify the conditions of the licence;  

 Reject whole or part of the application.  
 

7.0 Implications 

Financial, Resources and Procurement 

7.1 N/A 

Human Resources 

7.2 N/A 

Legal 

7.3 Licensing Act 2003 section 35(3) states that where relevant representations are 
made, the Licensing Authority must— 

Page 4



(a) Hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each 
person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is unnecessary, 
and 

(b) Having regard to the representations, take such of the steps mentioned in 
subsection (4) (if any) as it considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives. 

The steps in subsection 4 are:  

(a) To modify the conditions of the licence; 

(b) To reject the whole or part of the application; 

and for this purpose the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them is altered 
or omitted or any new condition is added.  

7.3.1  Members’ attention is drawn to the following sections of the Section 182 Guidance to 
the Licensing Act 2003, which states: 

 
“2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on 
crime and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety 
Partnership (CSP). 

 
2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate 
to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club 
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this 
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect 
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working 
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, 
light pollution, noxious smells and litter. 
 
2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is 
however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law 
meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and 
working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of 
the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects 
of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health. 
 
2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to 
control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a 
simple measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a 
particular time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a 
certain time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or 
rubber speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be 
appropriate. However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be 
enforceable in circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable 
(see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public 
nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific 
premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate 
or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the 
community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to purchase 
and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues. 
 
2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in 

Page 5



antisocial behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly 
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant 
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from 
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they 
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and 
to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night. 
 
9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate 
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations 
should be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any 
representations or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or 
other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises user as the 
case may be.  
 
9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is 
intended to achieve. 

 
10.8 The licensing authority may not impose any conditions unless its discretion has 
been exercised following receipt of relevant representations and it is satisfied as a 
result of a hearing (unless all parties agree a hearing is not necessary) that it is 
appropriate to impose conditions to promote one or more of the four licensing 
objectives. In order to promote the crime prevention licensing objective conditions may 
be included that are aimed at preventing illegal working in licensed premises. This 
provision also applies to minor variations.  
 
16.36 Any existing licence conditions (or conditions added on a determination of an 
application for a premises licence or club premises certificate) which relate to live 
music or recorded music remain in place, but are suspended between the hours of 
08.00 and 23.00 on the same day where the following conditions are met:  
• at the time of the music entertainment, the premises are open for the purposes of 
being used for the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises;  
• if the music is amplified, it takes place before an audience of no more than 500 
people; and  
• the music takes place between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day. 
 
16.37 Whether a licence condition relates to live or recorded music will be a matter of 
fact in each case. In some instances, it will be obvious that a condition relates to music 
and will be suspended, for example “during performances of live music all doors and 
windows must remain closed”. In other instances, it might not be so obvious: for 
example, a condition stating “during performances of regulated entertainment all doors 
and windows must remain closed” would be suspended insofar as it relates to music 
between 08.00 and 23.00 on the same day to an audience of up to 500, but the 
condition would continue to apply if there was regulated entertainment after 23.00. 
 
16.38 More general licence conditions (e.g. those relating to overall management of 
potential noise nuisance) that are not specifically related to the provision of 
entertainment (e.g. signage asking patrons to leave quietly) will continue to have effect. 
 
16.39 Chapter 9 of this Guidance sets out how a licensing authority must determine 
applications for a new licence or to vary an existing premises licence. Licence 
conditions imposed, in accordance with paragraphs 9.41 to 9.43, for live or recorded 
music activities will only apply if the activity meets the criteria of having more than 500 
people present, and/or the activities are taking place between 23.00 and 08.00. 
 

Page 6



16.40 These conditions will, in effect, be suspended between 08.00 and 23.00 if a 
performance of live music or the playing of recorded music takes place before an 
audience of 500 people or fewer, but will remain on the face of the licence for when 
these activities may take place under other circumstances. 
 

7.3.2    Members attention is also drawn to the following sections of the current Statement of 
licensing policy: 

Section 5 deals with the factors that should be taken in to account when 
representations have been submitted in respect of applications to grant or 
vary a premises licence.  

Sections 5.6 which deals with noise 

Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment 

7.4 Have you completed a Health and Sustainability Impact Assessment?  

7.5 If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:  

No assessment has been completed as the hearing is in line with legislative guidance, 
the impact of which has deemed as having a neutral impact.  

7.6 Summary of Health and Sustainability Impacts 

 

 Positive Neutral Negative Unknown 

Environment 
and Health 

Greenhouse gases 
emissions 

- X - - 

 Air Quality - X - - 

 Biodiversity - X - - 

 Impacts of Climate 
Change 

- X - - 

 Reduced or zero 
requirement for energy, 
building space, materials 
or travel 

- X - - 

 Active Travel - X - - 

Economy and 
Culture 

Inclusive and sustainable 
development 

- X - - 

 Jobs and levels of pay - X - - 

 Healthier high streets - X - - 

 Culture, creativity and 
heritage 

- X - - 

Housing and 
Communities 

Standard of housing - X - - 

 Access to housing - X - - 

 Crime - X - - 

 Social connectedness - X - - 

Page 7



 

Equality and Diversity 

7.7 Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No    

7.8 If you have not completed an Impact Analysis, please explain your reasons:  

 No assessment has been completed as the hearing is in line with legislative 
 guidance, the impact of which has deemed as having a neutral impact. 
 
7.9 Summary of Equality and Diversity impacts 

  

Please indicate: P = Positive impact; 0 = Neutral; N = Negative; Enter “X” 

Age P  0 X N  

Disability P  0 X N  

Gender reassignment (transgender) P  0 X N  

Marriage & civil partnership P  0 X N  

Pregnancy & maternity P  0 X N  

Race/ethnicity P  0 X N  

Religion or belief P  0 X N  

Sex/gender P  0 X N  

Sexual orientation P  0 X N  

Armed forces families P  0 X N  

Rurality P  0 X N  

Socio-economic disadvantage P  0 X N  

 

 

Risk Management Consequence Controls required 

Should members be minded not 
to grant this application, their 
decisions may be overturned on 
appeal to the Magistrates Court. 

Costs may be awarded 
against the 
Council should the appeal 
be upheld. 

Members to be made 
aware that the applicant 
has a right of appeal. 

Contact Officers 

Report Author – Patrick Cantley, Licensing Specialist, tel: 01539 793423, email: 
p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk.  

Background Documents Available 

 

Name of Background document Where it is available 

Licensing Act 2003 https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/section/
35  

Revised Guidance issued under 
section 182 of the Licensing Act 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanat 
ory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s- 

Page 8

mailto:p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/section/35
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2003/17/section/35


Name of Background document Where it is available 

2003  182-of-licensing-act-2003 

SLDC Statement of Licensing 
Policy 

https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/contentsearcher? 
q=licensing+poli 

Tracking Information 

Signed off by Date sent Date Signed off 

Section 151 Officer 11/10/2021 21/10/2021 

Monitoring Officer 11/10/2021 27/10/2021 

CMT 11/10/2021 21/10/2021 

 

Circulated to Date sent 

Lead Specialist 11/10/2021 

Human Resources Lead Specialist N/A 

Communications Team N/A 

Leader N/A 

Committee Chairman N/A 

Portfolio Holder N/A 

Ward Councillor(s) N/A 

Committee N/A 

Executive (Cabinet) N/A 

Council N/A 

 

 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Application to vary a premises licence under the Licensing Act 2003 

 

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST 

 

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.  If you are 

completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals.  In all cases ensure that your 

answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink.  Use additional sheets if necessary.  

 

You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records. 

 

 

I/We       

        )  

being the premises licence holder, apply to vary a premises licence under section 34 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described in Part 1 below 

 

Premises licence number  

     PLA039550 

 

Part 1 – Premises Details 
 

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description 

     Lakeland Farm Visitor Centre 

Grassgarth Lane  

Ings 

 

Post town      Kendal Postcode      LA8 9QF 

 

Telephone number at premises (if any)         

Non-domestic rateable value of premises £11726.50 

 

Part 2 – Applicant details 
 

Daytime contact  

telephone number 
      

E-mail address (optional)      enquiries@lakelandfarmvisitorcentre.co.uk 

Current postal address if 

different from premises 

address 

      

Post town       Postcode       

 

 

 

Part 3 - Variation 

Appendix A - Completed Application

Page 11



 

Please tick as appropriate 

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect as soon as possible?         Yes          

No 

 

If not, from what date do you want the variation to take effect? 
DD MM YYYY 

                
 

Do you want the proposed variation to have effect in relation to the introduction of the late night 

levy? (Please see guidance note 1)     Yes            No 

  

Please describe briefly the nature of the proposed variation (Please see guidance note  

 

The reason behind this application it to complement what we are already providing. 

 

Evening meals and beverages to complement. 

Private functions  

 

 

Your records show we have delivered these evenings successfully and without 

issues in the past through TENS from you. The have gone smoothly and well 

received in the community. 

 

The last 18 months has taught us that even the well-established, robust businesses 

can be fragile. We need to put security into our business to safeguard us and our 

local employees and this Variation will help is futureproof these positions. 

 

We attended the Ings Staveley Parish Council meeting on the 1 September 2021. 

We introduced ourselves explained what our plans were in regards to the 

application. We wanted to give the opportunity to provide clarity and address any 

concerns.  
 

 

 

If your proposed variation would mean that 5,000 or more people 

are expected to attend the premises at any one time, please state the 

number expected to attend: 

      
 

 

Page 12



Part 4 Operating Schedule   

 

Please complete those parts of the Operating Schedule below which would be subject to change if 

this application to vary is successful. 

 

Provision of regulated entertainment (Please see guidance note 

3) 

Please tick all that 

apply 

a) plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)  

b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)  

c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)  

d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)  

e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)                      YES  

f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)  

g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)  

h) 
anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  

(if ticking yes, fill in box H) 
 

 

   

   

   

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)   

Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)  

In all cases complete boxes K, L and M 
 

Page 13



A 
 

Plays  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Will the performance of a play take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 

read guidance note 4)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read 

guidance note 6) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column 

on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 14



B 
 

Films  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Will the exhibition of films take place indoors 

or outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 4)  

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read 

guidance note 6) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on 

the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 15



C 
 

Indoor sporting events  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Please give further details (please read guidance note 5) 

      

Day Start Finish 

Mon             

            

Tue             State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read 

guidance note 6) 

                  

Wed             

            

Thur             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      

            

Fri             

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

  

Page 16



D 
 

Boxing or wrestling 

entertainments  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment take 

place indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 

(please read guidance note 4)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment 

(please read guidance note 6) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for 

boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed 

in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 17



E 
 

Live music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Will the performance of live music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 

read guidance note 4)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 18.00 23.00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 

Will not be amplified 
            

Tue 18.00 23.00 

            

Wed 18.00 23.00 State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music 

(please read guidance note 6) 

     outdoors during summer months             

Thur 18.00 23.00 

            

Fri      

18.00 

     

23.00 

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

performance of live music at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      
            

Sat 18.00 23.00 

            

Sun 18.00 22.00 

            

 

Page 18



F 
 

Recorded music  

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Will the playing of recorded music take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick (please 

read guidance note 4)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 18.00 23.00 Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 

      

DJ music              

Tue 18.00 23.00 

            

Wed 18.00 23.00 State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music 

(please read guidance note 6) 

                  

Thur 18.00 23.00 

            

Fri 18.00 23.00 Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises for the 

playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      

            

Sat 18.00 23.00 

            

Sun 18.00 22.00 

            

 

Page 19



G 
 

Performances of 

dance 
Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Will the performance of dance take place 

indoors or outdoors or both – please tick 
(please read guidance note 4)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance 
(please read guidance note 6) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the performance of dance at different times to those listed in 

the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 20



H 
 

Anything of a similar 

description to that 

falling within (e), (f) or 

(g) 
Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be 

providing 

      

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or 
outdoors or both – please tick (please read 

guidance note 4)  

Indoors  

Mon             Outdoors  

            Both  

Tue             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 

      
            

Wed             

            

Thur             State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar 
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)  (please read 

guidance note 6) 

      
            

Fri             

            

Sat 
            

Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the entertainment of a similar description to that falling 

within (e), (f) or (g) at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      
            

Sun 
            

            

 

Page 21



 I 
 

Late night 

refreshment 
Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Will the provision of late night refreshment 

take place indoors or outdoors or both – 
please tick (please read guidance note 4)   

 

Indoors  

Outdoors  

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon             Please give further details here (please read guidance note 5) 

      
            

Tue             

            

Wed             State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night 

refreshment (please read guidance note 6) 

                  

Thur             

            

Fri             Non standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to 

those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read 

guidance note 7) 

      

            

Sat             

            

Sun             

            

 

Page 22



J 
 

Supply of alcohol 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

Will the supply of alcohol be for 

consumption – please tick  (please read 

guidance note 9)   

 

On the 

premises 
 

Off the 

premises 
 

Day Start Finish Both  

Mon 10.00 23.00 State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please 

read guidance note 6) 

      

Provide local alcohol for retail offsite 

 

Provide alcohol to accompany their meal onsite 

            

Tue 10.00 23.00 

            

Wed 10.00 23.00 

       

Thur 10.00 23.00 Non-standard timings.  Where you intend to use the premises 

for the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the 

column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      

            

Fri 10.00 23.00 

            

Sat 10.00 23.00 

            

Sun 10.00 22.00 

            

 

 

K 

 

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or 

matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of 
children (please read guidance note 10). 

      

 

 

  

Page 23



 

 

L 

 

Hours premises are 

open to the public 

Standard days and 

timings (please read 

guidance note 8) 

State any seasonal variations (please read guidance note 6) 

     Generally 10am to 6pm 

 

10am to 11pm for 

Evenings during summer months 

Fridays and Saturdays for Taster menu nights and Steak nights 

 
Day Start Finish 

Mon 10.00 23.00 

            

Tue 10.00 23.00 

            

Wed 10.00 23.00 

            Non standard timings.  Where you intend the premises to be 

open to the public at different times from those listed in the 
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 7) 

      

Thur 10.00 23.00 

            

Fri 10.00 23.00 

            

Sat 10.00 23.00 

            

Sun 10.00 22.00 

            

 

Please identify those conditions currently imposed on the licence which you believe could be 

removed as a consequence of the proposed variation you are seeking. 

      

 
 

Page 24



 

Please tick as appropriate 

 I have enclosed the premises licence  

 I have enclosed the relevant part of the premises licence  

 

If you have not ticked one of these boxes, please fill in reasons for not including the licence or part 

of it below 

 

Reasons why I have not enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of premises licence. 

 

Premises Licence number PLA039550 

Issued SLDC 

 

Do you need the hard copy or can I scan it? Thanks 

 

Page 25



M Describe any additional steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives as a 

result of the proposed variation: 

 

a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 11) 

 shall ensure that all times when the premises are for any licensable 

activity, there are sufficient competent staff on duty at the premises for the purpose of fulfilling 

the terms and conditions of the licence and for preventing crime and disorder. I shall ensure 

that all staff will undertake training in their responsibilities in relation to the sale of alcohol, 

particularly with regard to drunkenness and underage persons.  

 

b) The prevention of crime and disorder 

Any incidents of a criminal nature that may occur on the premises will be reported to the 

Police. The Licensee will install comprehensive CCTV coverage at the premises and it is 

operated and maintained at the premises. The CCTV system shall conform to the following 

points: 1. Cameras must be sited to observe the entrance and exit doors both inside and outside. 

2. Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads and shoulders 

 

c) Public safety 

Appropriate fire safety procedures are in place including fire extinguishers (foam, H20 and 

CO2), fire blanket, internally illuminated fire exit signs, numerous smoke detectors and 

emergency lighting.  All appliances are inspected annually. All emergency exits shall be kept 

free from obstruction at all times. 

 

d) The prevention of public nuisance 

All customers will be asked to leave quietly. Clear and legible notices will be prominently 

displayed to remind customers to leave quietly and have regard to our neighbours. 

 

e) The protection of children from harm 

Page 26



The licensee and staff will ask persons who appear to be under the age of 25 for photographic 

ID such as proof of age cards, the Connexions Card and Citizen Card, photographic driving 

licence or passport, an official identity card issued by HM Forces or by an EU country, bearing 

the photograph and date of birth of bearer. All staff will be trained for UNDERAGE SALES 

PREVENTION regularly. A register of refused sales shall be kept and maintained on the 

premises 

 

Checklist: 

Please tick to indicate agreement 

 

 

I have made or enclosed payment of the fee; or  

I have not made or enclosed payment of the fee because this application has been 

made in relation to the introduction of the late night levy. 

 

 

  

 I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and 

others where applicable. 
 

 I understand that I must now advertise my application.  

 I have enclosed the premises licence or relevant part of it or explanation.  

 I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will 

be rejected.  
 

 

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE 

A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE 

WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION 

TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.   

 

Part 5 – Signatures   (please read guidance note 12) 

 

Signature of applicant (the current premises licence holder) or applicant’s solicitor or other 

duly authorised agent (please read guidance note 13).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, 

please state in what capacity. 
 

Signature  

Date 29/03/2021 

Capacity Manager 

 

Where the premises licence is jointly held, signature of 2nd applicant (the current premises 

licence holder) or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent (please read guidance 

note 14).  If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.  

 

Signature  

Date       

Capacity       

 

Page 27



Contact name (where not previously given) and address for correspondence associated 
with this application (please read guidance note 15) 

 

Lakeland Farm Visitor Centre 

Grassgarth Lane 

Ings 

Post town Kendal Post code LA8 9QF 

Telephone number (if any)  

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address (optional) 

enquiries@lakelandfarmvisitorcentre.co.uk 

 

Notes for Guidance 

 

This application cannot be used to vary the licence so as to extend the period for which the 

licence has effect or to vary substantially the premises to which it relates. If you wish to 

make that type of change to the premises licence, you should make a new premises licence 

application under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

 

 
 

 

1. You do not have to pay a fee if the only purpose of the variation for which you are 

applying is to avoid becoming liable for the late night levy 

2. Describe the premises. For example, the type of premises, its general situation and layout 

and any other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where 

your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place of 

consumption of these off-supplies of alcohol, you must include a description of where the 

place will be and its proximity to the premises. 

3. In terms of specific regulated entertainments please note that:  

 Plays: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

 Films: no licence is required for ‘not-for-profit’ film exhibition held in 

community premises  between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day provided that the 

audience does not exceed 500 and the organiser (a) gets consent to the screening 

from a person who is responsible for the premises; and (b) ensures that each such 

screening abides by age classification ratings. 

 Indoor sporting events: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 

and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000.     

 Boxing or Wrestling Entertainment:  no licence is required for a contest, 

exhibition or display of Greco-Roman wrestling, or freestyle wrestling between 

08.00 and 23.00 on any day, provided that the audience does not exceed 1000. 

Combined fighting sports – defined as a contest, exhibition or display which 

combines boxing or wrestling with one or more martial arts – are licensable as a 

boxing or wrestling entertainment rather than an indoor sporting event. 

 Live music: no licence permission is required for: 

o a performance of unamplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on 

any day, on any premises. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day on premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those 

premises, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 
day, in a workplace that is not licensed to sell alcohol on those premises, 

provided that the audience does not exceed 500.  

Page 28



o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day, in a church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar 

community premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell 

alcohol, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the 

organiser gets consent for the performance from a person who is 

responsible for the premises. 

o a performance of amplified live music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day, at the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a 

school, or (iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 

500, and (b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the 

relevant premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the 

school or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

 Recorded Music: no licence permission is required for: 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day on 

premises authorised to sell alcohol for consumption on those premises, 

provided that the audience does not exceed 500. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, in a 

church hall, village hall, community hall, or other similar community 

premises, that is not licensed by a premises licence to sell alcohol, 

provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and (b) the organiser 

gets consent for the performance from a person who is responsible for 

the premises. 

o any playing of recorded music between 08.00 and 23.00 on any day, at 

the non-residential premises of (i) a local authority, or (ii) a school, or 

(iii) a hospital, provided that (a) the audience does not exceed 500, and 

(b) the organiser gets consent for the performance on the relevant 

premises from: (i) the local authority concerned, or (ii) the school 

proprietor or (iii) the health care provider for the hospital. 

 

 Dance: no licence is required for performances between 08.00 and 23.00 on any 

day, provided that the audience does not exceed 500. However, a performance 

which amounts to adult entertainment remains licensable. 

 Cross activity exemptions: no licence is required between 08.00 and 23.00 on 

any day, with no limit on audience size for:    

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the local authority 

where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the local 

authority;  

o any entertainment taking place on the hospital premises of the health 

care provider where the entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the 

health care provider;  

o any entertainment taking place on the premises of the school where the 

entertainment is provided by or on behalf of the school proprietor; and 

o any entertainment (excluding films and a boxing or wrestling 

entertainment) taking place at a travelling circus, provided that (a) it 

takes place within a moveable structure that accommodates the audience, 

and (b) that the travelling circus has not been located on the same site for 

more than 28 consecutive days. 

4. Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate (indoors 

may include a tent). 

 

5. For example state type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant 

further details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified 

or unamplified. 

6. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during 

the summer months. 

7. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a 

particular day e.g. Christmas Eve. 

Page 29



8. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16.00) and only give details for the days of the 

week when you intend the premises to be used for the activity. 

9. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises, please tick ‘on the 

premises’. If you wish people to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the 

premises, please tick ‘off the premises’. If you wish people to be able to do both, please 

tick ‘both’. 

10. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to 

the use of the premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children regardless of 

whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example (but not 

exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups or the presence of 

gaming machines. 

11. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together. 

12. The application form must be signed. 

13. An applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided 

that they have actual authority to do so. 

14. Where there is more than one applicant, each of the applicants or their respective agents 

must sign the application form. 

15. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application. 

 

  

 

Page 30



Appendix ‘B’ – Relevant representations from interested 

parties 

 

From: Sue 

Sent: 09 September 2021 12:44 

To: Licensing <Licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk> 

Subject: Application for alcohol licence 

 

Dear Sirs, 

Further to my earlier email of 18th August, I now write with reference to a recently re-submitted 

application for a music and alcohol licence at The Lakeland Farm Visitor Centre by Isaac and Kerrie 

Benson. 

1 I feel that the hours requested for the sale and consumption of alcohol are likely to 
increase the possibility of crime and disorder in what is currently a very quiet and peaceful 
village location. 
2 Any disorder on the premises could cause harm to visiting children. 
3 Late night parties are likely to cause public nuisance from noise and general disturbance. 
4 Public safety is at risk from increased traffic on a quiet and narrow lane. 

 

Yours faithfully, 

Sue Osmaston (Mrs) 

 

Dear Mrs Osmaston,  

Licensing Act 2003 

Application for the variation of a premises licence – Lakeland Farm Visitors Centre, 

Ings 

Representation – Prevention of public nuisance & Prevention of crime and disorder.  

Thank you for submitting a representation in relation to the above application. Your objection 

is currently being processed in line with statutory arrangements.  

I note your representation concerns the licensing objectives Prevention of public nuisance and 

Prevention of crime and disorder.  

If your representation cannot be addressed through mediation between you and the 

applicant then the application must be heard by a sub-committee of the Licensing Committee 

of the Council. This will normally take place within 20 working days after the end of the public 

consultation period i.e. by 28th October 2021. 

In the event of a hearing being convened the names and addresses of all persons making 

such representations will normally be made available for public circulation unless there is 

specific necessity for such information to be withheld.  

Page 31

mailto:Licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk


If you have any further questions please contact me at the details listed below.  

Thanks,  

Patrick Cantley | Licensing Officer 
South Lakeland District Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, Cumbria 
LA9 4DQ 
Tel: 01539 733333 | Direct Tel: 01539 793423 | Email: p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk  
Website: www.southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

From: darren 

Sent: 09 September 2021 13:01 

To: Licensing <Licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk> 

Subject: Objection for extension of licensing Mr and Mrs Benson at meadow Bank Farm T/A 

Lakeland farm visitor center ings. NO REFERENCE NUMBER ADVERTISED BY THE APPLICANT!  

Dear Sir or madam,  

I object to the licensing application extension for Mr and Mrs Benson, meadow Bank Farm T/A 

Lakeland farm visitor center ings on the following -  

1- On the grounds that it will cause public nuisance, due to the application of live music outside and 

inside and DJ, as the business has no sound proofing on any of the proposed buildings, which will 

ultimately mean a disturbance of our right to quiet enjoyment of our home and surrounding area, 

we have already had rowdy behaviour from people passing on the way from the steak nights under 

the temporary events notice from this business.  

2- On the grounds of public safety on an already restricted road, which has become vastly busier 

during daylight hours, on a single lane, and no lighting or road markings, a danger to the. Public out 

walking dogs late evenings. 

Also the place of business is only accessible by car and adds to the temptation of driving under the 

influence.  

When people have travelled on foot on the rare occasions  

the noise of people when they had previously had temporary licence, shouting and using fowl 

language, after being at their venue.  

3- Public protection,  

However it is in my own personal experience as a restauranteur for nearly 30 years and a held an 

alcohol license myself, that people's drinking habits are greatly changed in the evening and with 

addition it is a drive to destination given their location and last orders being 2300hrs Monday to 

Saturday and 2230hr Sunday serving alcohol until this time and then customers would not leave for 

at least 30 minutes later that would mean traffic upto and after midnight.  

4- Taking in to consideration the way the initial application was placed and the confusion it caused 

with the council, residents and licensing involvement before this new application has been 

submitted, it does not give rise to confidence in the licencee's ability to run an extended 

entertainment, live music and DJ license or restaurant, not for an odd steak night, which we could 

not object to with it being a temporary license.  

 

Page 32

mailto:p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


May we please note for the record, there is no formal notice on the licensing website South Lakes 

council nor in the press, as required by law, as of the date of this petition nor any application 

number.  

 

Therefore I believe they don't meet at least 3 of the 4 criteria set out by 2003 UK licensing act.  

Yours sincerely.  

Darren Yates.  

 

Dear Mr Yates,  

Licensing Act 2003 

Representation relating to the application for the variation of a premises licence 
Lakeland Farm Visitor Centre, Ings.  
 

I have read and considered the content of your representation against the nature of the 

application and the premises it relates to. Whilst I note the applicants have specified they 

would like to have live and recorded music in their application I must point out that the law 

specifies that activities of this type are not licensable between 08:00 and 23:00 hours of any 

day at premises of this type. This is because these activities have been deregulated in law 

and as such, whilst I accept their appearance on the application, it isn’t actually something 

that is in play for a representation to be made against. In addition to this concerns relating to 

highways are not a matter of consideration for applications of this type and whilst I 

understand the points you have made I cannot accept them as relevant.  

As things stand the majority of your representation does not comply with the requirements of 

section 35(5) of the Licensing Act 2003, which state: 

‘For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means 

representations which are about the likely effect of the grant of the 

premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.’ 

The licensing objectives mentioned in the preceding paragraph are defined in section 4 (2) of 

the Act, thus: 

(2)The licensing objectives are— 

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

(b) public safety; 

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 

(d) the protection of children from harm. 

However, I can accept the point you have made relating to nuisance potentially being 

caused by patrons exiting the premises and propose the following conditions are inserted in 

to the licence to assist with mitigating your concerns –  

Page 33



A dispersal policy to be written to include signs and verbal requests to leave the premises in 

an orderly manner. 

Notices to be displayed at all exits to request customers to leave quietly and respect the 

privacy of the neighbours.  

Please let me know whether these measures would assist in mitigating your concerns 

relating to potential nuisance. If your representation cannot be addressed through mediation 

between you and the applicant then the application must be heard by a sub-committee of the 

Licensing Committee of the Council. This will normally take place within 20 working days 

after the end of the public consultation period i.e. by 28th October 2021. 

In the event of a hearing being convened the names and addresses of all persons making 

such representations will normally be made available for public circulation unless there is 

specific necessity for such information to be withheld.  

If you wish to reconsider the content of your representation you must ensure that it relates to 

the application and how its proposed nature is likely to undermine the licensing objectives.  

Please note that the deadline for further alterations to your representation is at midnight of 

tonight (30th September 2021) and anything received after this will not be accepted.  

I understand you may be disappointed by this response however the Licensing Act 2003 is 

clear in respect as to what can and cannot be accepted where representations are 

concerned.  

Yours sincerely 

Patrick Cantley | Licensing Officer 
South Lakeland District Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, Cumbria 
LA9 4DQ 
Tel: 01539 733333 | Direct Tel: 01539 793423 | Email: p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk  
Website: www.southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

From: Laura Malone  
Sent: 13 September 2021 10:19 
To: Licensing <Licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk> 
Subject: Meadowbank farm - Lakeland visitor centre, Ings (part two ) 
 
To whom it may concern :  
 
NB for the record: 
No NEW reference number has been marked by the applicant on the application -(the previous 
attempt was PLA039550 ). 
 
Nor, as it states from 3rd September on the blue notice, was it put up then .  
 
 Neither does there seem to be a new application for public viewing on the website. This does not 
inspire confidence after their last attempt. 
 
So once again objecting to the proposed extension of licensing and music (fact that wanting OUTSIDE 
music in summer months NOT made clear on the blue notice ) in what Is currently a DAYTIME only 
cafe, butchers , shop and visitors centre, in a quiet residential and rural area within the National 
Park. 

Page 34

mailto:p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/
mailto:Licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk


 
Objections: 
 
-Public Nuisance -  noise/sound pollution which will affect our right to quiet enjoyment in rural, 
residential area (No sound proofing on the premises); and then the additional traffic noise (and 
safety ) up to and  around midnight .  
 
- potential anti social behaviour (there is already the occasional disturbance of people returning 
from the pub). 
 
-  Increase in cars, taxis etc affecting public safety on our small single track, unmarked country Lane 
(no street lighting (thank goodness!!) . Potential for driving under influence .  
  
- potential for increase in crime in our area.  
 
It has been argued that they have run ‘’lots of evening events already’’ and ‘’no one has 
complained”. Well they have been held sporadically  once in a while  and not EVERY night or for 
bigger private parties or weddings , which is obviously what COULD very shortly happen should 
licensing be granted. Also , our understanding is that we are unable to argue against any temporary 
licence anyway. 
 
Kind regards 
Laura Jones 
Ings  
 

Dear Ms Jones, 

Licensing Act 2003 
Representation relating to the application for the variation of a premises licence Lakeland Farm 
Visitor Centre, Ings.  
 
I have read and considered the content of your representation against the nature of the application 
and the premises it relates to. Whilst I note the applicants have specified they would like to have live 
and recorded music in their application I must point out that the law specifies that activities of this 
type are not licensable between 08:00 and 23:00 hours of any day at premises of this type. This is 
because these activities have been deregulated in law and as such, whilst I accept their appearance 
on the application, it isn’t actually something that is in play for a representation to be made against. 
In addition to this concerns relating to highways are not a matter of consideration for applications of 
this type and whilst I understand the points you have made I cannot accept them as relevant.  
 
As things stand the majority of your representation does not comply with the requirements of 
section 35(5) of the Licensing Act 2003, which state: 
 
‘For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means representations which are about 
the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.’ 
 
The licensing objectives mentioned in the preceding paragraph are defined in section 4 (2) of the 
Act, thus: 
(2)The licensing objectives are— 
(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 
(b) public safety; 

Page 35



(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 
(d) the protection of children from harm. 
 
However, I can accept the point you have made relating to nuisance potentially being caused by 
patrons exiting the premises and propose the following conditions are inserted in to the licence to 
assist with mitigating your concerns –  
 
A dispersal policy to be written to include signs and verbal requests to leave the premises in an 
orderly manner. 
Notices to be displayed at all exits to request customers to leave quietly and respect the privacy of 
the neighbours.   
 
Please let me know whether these measures would assist in mitigating your concerns relating to 
potential nuisance. If your representation cannot be addressed through mediation between you and 
the applicant then the application must be heard by a sub-committee of the Licensing Committee of 
the Council. This will normally take place within 20 working days after the end of the public 
consultation period i.e. by 28th October 2021. 
 
In the event of a hearing being convened the names and addresses of all persons making such 
representations will normally be made available for public circulation unless there is specific 
necessity for such information to be withheld.  
 
If you wish to reconsider the content of your representation you must ensure that it relates to the 
application and how its proposed nature is likely to undermine the licensing objectives.  
Please note that the deadline for further alterations to your representation is at midnight of tonight 
(30th September 2021) and anything received after this will not be accepted.  
I understand you may be disappointed by this response however the Licensing Act 2003 is clear in 
respect as to what can and cannot be accepted where representations are concerned.  
 
Yours sincerely 
 
Patrick Cantley | Licensing Officer 
South Lakeland District Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4DQ 
Tel: 01539 733333 | Direct Tel: 01539 793423 | Email: p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk  
Website: www.southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

From: Robbie Young  

Sent: 14 September 2021 06:32 

To: Licensing <Licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk> 

Subject: The re submitted application for alcohol and music licence at The Lakeland Farm Visitors 

Centre Ings.By Kerrie and Isaac Benson. Dated 3/9/21 first Viewed 9/9/21. 

The centre holds various activities for children. Including Archery. The availability of alcohol all day is 

not appropriate to their welfare and safety.  

The lane is already a danger to the general public. The increased traffic using the driveway is 

regarded by the majority of delivery drivers and motorists as the right of way. Making the very tight 

corner entrance very hazardous for the horse riders ,cyclists ,dog walkers, visitors from the caravan 

park ,families with children and pushchairs and the residents. 

Page 36

mailto:p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/
mailto:Licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk


Alcohol served from 10am to 11pm and until 10.30pm on Sundays with live and recorded music will 

cause noise and light pollution in an otherwise quite rural area with in The National Park.  

Public disorder with pedestrians returning home disturbing the residents who mostly retire early.  

The threat of crime and damage occurring to their properties becoming an unnecessary worry. 

Roberta Young (Mrs). 

 
Dear Mrs Young,  
 
Licensing Act 2003 
Representation relating to the application for the variation of a premises licence Lakeland 
Farm Visitor Centre, Ings.  
 
I have read and considered the content of your representation against the nature of the 
application and the premises it relates to. Whilst I note the applicants have specified they 
would like to have live and recorded music in their application I must point out that the law 
specifies that activities of this type are not licensable between 08:00 and 23:00 hours of any 
day at premises of this type. This is because these activities have been deregulated in law 
and as such, whilst I accept their appearance on the application, it isn’t actually something 
that is in play for a representation to be made against. In addition to this concerns relating to 
highways are not a matter of consideration for applications of this type and whilst I 
understand the points you have made I cannot accept them as relevant.  
 
As things stand the majority of your representation does not comply with the requirements of 
section 35(5) of the Licensing Act 2003, which state: 
 
‘For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means representations which 
are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises licence on the promotion of the 
licensing objectives.’ 
 
The licensing objectives mentioned in the preceding paragraph are defined in section 4 (2) of 
the Act, thus: 
 
(2)The licensing objectives are— 
 
(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 
(b) public safety; 
(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 
(d) the protection of children from harm. 
 
However, I can accept the point you have made relating to nuisance potentially being 
caused by patrons exiting the premises and propose the following conditions are inserted in 
to the licence to assist with mitigating your concerns –  
 
A dispersal policy to be written to include signs and verbal requests to leave the premises in 
an orderly manner. 
Notices to be displayed at all exits to request customers to leave quietly and respect the 
privacy of the neighbours.   
 
Please let me know whether these measures would assist in mitigating your concerns 
relating to potential nuisance. If your representation cannot be addressed through mediation 
between you and the applicant then the application must be heard by a sub-committee of the 

Page 37



Licensing Committee of the Council. This will normally take place within 20 working days 
after the end of the public consultation period i.e. by 28th October 2021. 
 
In the event of a hearing being convened the names and addresses of all persons making 
such representations will normally be made available for public circulation unless there is 
specific necessity for such information to be withheld.  
 
If you wish to reconsider the content of your representation you must ensure that it relates to 
the application and how its proposed nature is likely to undermine the licensing objectives.  
Please note that the deadline for further alterations to your representation is at midnight of 
tonight (30th September 2021) and anything received after this will not be accepted.  
I understand you may be disappointed by this response however the Licensing Act 2003 is 
clear in respect as to what can and cannot be accepted where representations are 
concerned.  
 

Thanks,  

Patrick Cantley | Licensing Officer 
South Lakeland District Council, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street, Kendal, Cumbria 
LA9 4DQ 
Tel: 01539 733333 | Direct Tel: 01539 793423 | Email: p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk  
Website: www.southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

Page 38

mailto:p.cantley@southlakeland.gov.uk
http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


 

 

 

 

Page 39



 
 

South Lakeland District Council 
South Lakeland House 

Lowther Street 
Kendal 

Cumbria 
LA9 4DQ 

 
Tel: 01539 733333 

www.southlakeland.gov.uk 
 

Our Ref:   Your Ref:  Date:  30th September 2021 

Dear   

 

Licensing Act 2003 

Representation relating to the application for the variation of a premises licence 

Lakeland Farm Visitor Centre, Ings.  

 

I have read and considered the content of your representation against the nature of the application 

and the premises it relates to. As things stand the majority of your representation does not comply 

with the requirements of section 35(5) of the Licensing Act 2003, which state: 

‘For the purposes of this section, “relevant representations” means 

representations which are about the likely effect of the grant of the premises 

licence on the promotion of the licensing objectives.’ 

The licensing objectives mentioned in the preceding paragraph are defined in section 4 (2) of the Act, 

thus: 

(2)The licensing objectives are— 

(a) the prevention of crime and disorder; 

(b) public safety; 

(c) the prevention of public nuisance; and 

(d) the protection of children from harm. 

 

However, I can accept the point you have made relating to nuisance potentially being caused by 

patrons exiting the premises and propose the following conditions are inserted in to the licence to 

assist with mitigating your concerns –  

 

A dispersal policy to be written to include signs and verbal requests to leave the premises in an 

orderly manner. 

 

Page 40



 

 

 

 

 

 

Notices to be displayed at all exits to request customers to leave quietly and respect the privacy of 

the neighbours.   

Please let me know whether these measures would assist in mitigating your concerns relating to 

potential nuisance. If your representation cannot be addressed through mediation between you and 

the applicant then the application must be heard by a sub-committee of the Licensing Committee of 

the Council. This will normally take place within 20 working days after the end of the public 

consultation period i.e. by 28th October 2021. 

In the event of a hearing being convened the names and addresses of all persons making such 

representations will normally be made available for public circulation unless there is specific 

necessity for such information to be withheld.  

If you wish to reconsider the content of your representation you must ensure that it relates to the 

application and how its proposed nature is likely to undermine the licensing objectives. Please note 

that the deadline for further alterations to your representation is at midnight of tonight (30th 

September 2021) and anything received after this will not be accepted.  

I understand you may be disappointed by this response however the Licensing Act 2003 is clear in 

respect as to what can and cannot be accepted where representations are concerned.  

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Mr Patrick Cantley 

Licensing Officer 

Public Protection 

Email: licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk 

 

 

 

 

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



P
age 43



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 44



APPENDIX D 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Public Protection Group 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street  
Kendal 01539 733333 
Cumbria LA9 4DQ  licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk
  
 

 

 

 

   Page 1 of 6 

Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence                                       PL(A)039550 
Licence Valid From: 9 June 2019 

 

 
Part 1 - Premises Details  

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 
 

Lakeland Farm Visitor Centre, Meadowbank Farm, Grassgarth Lane, Ings, Kendal, 
Cumbria, LA8 9QF 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES 

 

Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE 

 

Supply of Alcohol 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 
 

Activity (and Area if applicable)       
 

  Day        Start Time End Time     

Supply of Alcohol Monday to Sunday     09:30 18:00 
  

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES 

Day                          Start Time     End Time 

Monday to Sunday     09:30 18:00 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF PREMISES 

 

Alcohol On and Off the Premises 

 
Part 2 

NAME, (REGISTERED) ADDRESS, TELEPHONE NUMBER AND EMAIL (WHERE RELEVANT) OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE 
 

Mrs Kerrie Benson, Meadowbank Farm, Grassgarth Lane, Ings, Kendal, Cumbria, LA8 9QF  

 
REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE) 

 

 

 
NAME, ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE 
AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 

Mrs Kerrie Benson, Meadowbank Farm, Grassgarth Lane, Ings, Kendal, Cumbria, LA8 9QF  

 
PERSONAL LICENCE NUMBER AND ISSUING AUTHORITY OF PERSONAL LICENCE HELD BY DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR 
WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES FOR THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

  

 

Page 45



APPENDIX D 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Public Protection Group 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street  
Kendal 01539 733333 
Cumbria LA9 4DQ  licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk
  
 

 

 

 

   Page 2 of 6 

Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence                                       PL(A)039550 
Licence Valid From: 9 June 2019 

 

Licence Number: PA039464 Issued By: South Lakeland 

 
ANNEXES 

Annex 1  
 
On and Off Licence  - Mandatory Conditions 

 
1. No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence –  

 
  a) At a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of the premises licence, or;  
 
  b) At a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence, or his  
      personal licence is suspended.  
 

2. Every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or authorised by a person who holds  
    a personal licence.  

 
Mandatory Licensing Conditions from 01 Oct 2014  

 
1. (1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out, arrange or  
          participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.  

  (2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following activities, or  
       substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging the sale or supply of  
       alcohol for consumption on the premises—  
 
       (a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or encourage,  
            individuals to—  
             (i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or supplied on  
                 the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible person is  
                 authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or  
            (ii) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);  
 
       (b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or discounted fee to  
            the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a manner which carries a  
            significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;  
 

         (c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or reward the  
              purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a manner which  
              carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;  

 
       (d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in the vicinity  
            of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage or glamorise anti-  
            social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any favourable manner;  

Page 46



APPENDIX D 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Public Protection Group 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street  
Kendal 01539 733333 
Cumbria LA9 4DQ  licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk
  
 

 

 

 

   Page 3 of 6 

Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence                                       PL(A)039550 
Licence Valid From: 9 June 2019 

 

 
       (e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than where that other  
            person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).  
 

2. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request to customers where  
     it is reasonably available.  

 
3. (1) The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an age verification  
         policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or supply of alcohol.  

  (2) The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure that the supply  
       of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age verification policy.  
  (3) The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under 18 years of  
       age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being  
       served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and either—  
 
       (a) a holographic mark, or  
       (b) an ultraviolet feature.  
 

4. The responsible person must ensure that—  
 (a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on the premises  
      (other than alcoholic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in advance ready for sale or  
      supply in a securely closed container) it is available to customers in the following measures—  
 
        (i) beer or cider: ½ pint;  
       (ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and  
      (iii) still wine in a glass: 125 ml;  
 
 (b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which is available to  
      customers on the premises; and  
 
 (c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of alcohol to be sold,  
      the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”  
 

Mandatory Conditions Order 2014  
 

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on or off the  
    premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.  

 
2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—  

 (a)“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979(1);  
 
 (b)“permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—  

P = D + (D x V) 

Page 47



APPENDIX D 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Public Protection Group 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street  
Kendal 01539 733333 
Cumbria LA9 4DQ  licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk
  
 

 

 

 

   Page 4 of 6 

Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence                                       PL(A)039550 
Licence Valid From: 9 June 2019 

 

where— 
         (i) P is the permitted price, 
        (ii) D is the amount of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were charged on the  
             date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and 
       (iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the value added tax  
             were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;  
 
 (c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a premises  
       licence—  
         (i) the holder of the premises licence,  
        (ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or  
       (iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under such a licence;  
 
 (d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in force a club premises  
       certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the premises in a capacity which enables  
       the member or officer to prevent the supply in question; and  
 
 (e) “value added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value Added Tax Act  
        1994  
 

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from this paragraph) not  
    be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-paragraph shall be taken to be the price  
    actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded up to the nearest penny.  

 
4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 on a  
         day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on the next day (“the second day”)  
         as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value added tax.  

  (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or supplies of alcohol which  
       take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days beginning on the second day.  

 
Annex 2: Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule  

 
General – all four licensing objectives 
 
Staff training conducted and documented.  
 
The Prevention of Crime & Disorder 
 
CCTV installed and registered with the Information Commissioners Officer, data will be kpt for a minimum 
of 28 days.  
 
An incident book will be kept on the premises, records of refusals and disorder will be documented.  
 

Page 48



APPENDIX D 

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Public Protection Group 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street  
Kendal 01539 733333 
Cumbria LA9 4DQ  licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk
  
 

 

 

 

   Page 5 of 6 

Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence                                       PL(A)039550 
Licence Valid From: 9 June 2019 

 

Public Safety 
 
Internal, external and emergency lighting installed.  
 
The Prevention of Public Nuisance  
 
Delivery times will be carried out in a manner to prevent nuisance or disturbance to nearby residents.  
 
The Protection of Children from Harm  
 
A 'Challenge 25' policy shall be adopted and enforced at the premises, signage will be displayed on the 
premises.  

 
 

 

Page 49



SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL 
Public Protection Group 
South Lakeland House 
Lowther Street  
Kendal 01539 733333 
Cumbria LA9 4DQ  licensing@southlakeland.gov.uk
  
 

 

 

 

  Page 6 of 6 

Licensing Act 2003 

Premises Licence Summary                           PL(A)039550 
Licence Valid From: 9 June 2019 

 

Premises Details  

POSTAL ADDRESS OF PREMISES, OR IF NONE, ORDNANCE SURVEY MAP REFERENCE OR DESCRIPTION 
 

Lakeland Farm Visitor Centre, Meadowbank Farm, Grassgarth Lane, Ings, Kendal, 
Cumbria, LA8 9QF 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE IS TIME LIMITED THE DATES 

 

Not applicable 

 
LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES AUTHORISED BY THE LICENCE 

 

Supply of Alcohol 

 
THE TIMES THE LICENCE AUTHORISES THE CARRYING OUT OF LICENSABLE ACTIVITIES 
 

Activity (and Area if applicable)       
 

  Day        Start Time End Time     
Supply of Alcohol Monday to Sunday     09:30 18:00 
  

 
THE OPENING HOURS OF THE PREMISES 

Day                           Start Time     End Time 

Monday to Sunday     09:30 18:00 

 
WHERE THE LICENCE AUTHORISES SUPPLIES OF ALCOHOL WHETHER THESE ARE ON AND/OR OFF PREMISES 

 

Alcohol On and Off the Premises 
 

NAME AND (REGISTERED) ADDRESS OF HOLDER OF PREMISES LICENCE 
 

Mrs Kerrie Benson, Meadowbank Farm, Grassgarth Lane, Ings, Kendal, Cumbria, LA8 9QF  

 
REGISTERED NUMBER OF HOLDER, FOR EXAMPLE COMPANY NUMBER, CHARITY NUMBER (WHERE APPLICABLE) 

 

 
NAME OF DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR WHERE THE PREMISES LICENCE AUTHORISES THE SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL 

 

Mrs Kerrie Benson 

 
STATE WHETHER ACCESS TO THE PREMISES BY CHILDREN IS RESTRICTED OR PROHIBITED 
 
 

 

 

Page 50


	Agenda
	6 Licensing Act 2003
	Licensing Act 2003  - Appendix A
	Licensing Act 2003  - Appendix B
	Licensing Act 2003 - Appendix C
	Licensing Act 2003  - Appendix D




